
A G E N D A
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
August 22, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. MINUTES

1. June 20, 2018 Meeting Minutes

D. OLD BUSINESS

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C180071. BASF Temporary Overhead Power Line

2. C180064. 7083 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision

3. S00222018. 9812 Old Stage Rd. Minor Subdivision

F. ADJOURNMENT



AGENDA ITEM NO. C.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 8/22/2018 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Paul D. Holt, III, Secretary

SUBJECT: June 20, 2018 Meeting Minutes

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

June 20, 2018 Meeting Minutes Minutes

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 8/16/2018  8:03 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  8:35 AM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 8/17/2018  8:46 AM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  9:31 AM



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 20, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Tom Leininger, Planner
Marion Paine, Assistant Administrator Neighborhood Development
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Nancy Ellis, Parks and Recreation Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 40.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C00382018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Jose Ribeiro presented the Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements. He stated that
the proposal was to build a second boathouse and relocate the recreational vehicle (RV) and
boat storage area. He stated that the Master Plan was approved in 2009. He stated that
according to the Special Use Permit (SUP), improvements on the site should be generally
located as shown on the Master Plan. He stated that before a site plan can be turned in,
approval must be made by the Development Review Committee (DRC) to determine the
consistency with the Master Plan. He stated that the existing boathouse is leased by the

Page 1 of 6



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 20, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Tom Leininger, Planner
Marion Paine, Assistant Administrator Neighborhood Development
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Nancy Ellis, Parks and Recreation Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 40.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C00382018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Jose Ribeiro presented the Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements. He stated that
the proposal was to build a second boathouse and relocate the recreational vehicle (RV) and
boat storage area. He stated that the Master Plan was approved in 2009. He stated that
according to the Special Use Permit (SUP), improvements on the site should be generally
located as shown on the Master Plan. He stated that before a site plan can be turned in,
approval must be made by the Development Review Committee (DRC) to determine the
consistency with the Master Plan. He stated that the existing boathouse is leased by the
College of William & Mary, and that the second boathouse is needed to accommodate the
Williamsburg Boat Club and the general public. He stated that the proposed boathouse will be
built next to the existing boathouse. He stated that the existing boathouse is not built in the
location determined by the Master Plan due to the Resource Protection Area Buffer. He stated
that the location of the RV and boat storage area was already in place before the County
acquired the property. He stated that the Master Plan does not show the RV and boat storage
area. He stated that staff finds the proposal consistent with the adopted Master Plan and the
Shaping Our Shores Report. He stated that if the DRC finds the proposal consistent, a spill
prevention plan shall be submitted with a site plan. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked if the proposal is considered redevelopment.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed. He stated that certain SUP conditions are triggered depending on the
type of development.

Mr. Frank Polster asked if the location that is designated for the RV and boat storage is the
same location as the water treatment plant. 

Ms. Nancy Ellis stated that the RV and boat storage area is considered temporary and can be
adjusted to accommodate the water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that the James City Service Authority has completed a study and it was
approved by the United States Army Corps of Engineers. 

Ms. Ellis stated that the Master Plan would need to be updated to show the location of the
facility because it is not on the approved Master Plan. She stated that the desired location of
the RV and boat storage is in its original location when the County acquired the land. She
stated that the park can accommodate a water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that there is a substantial amount of sealevel rise projected in the park. He
stated that the boat dock is located in the RPA and would be subject to sealevel rise. He
stated that the location of the proposed boathouse would be in the RPA.

Ms. Ellis stated that the boat dock is already existing. She stated that the proposal is to add an
accessible area to the dock. She stated that Mike Woolson of Stormwater and Resource
Protection found the proposed location of the boathouse an acceptable area.

Mr. Polster asked if the boat dock is new or updated.

Ms. Ellis stated that the dock will be extended and be combined with the kayak launch site.

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked if the dock is a floating dock.

Ms. Ellis confirmed and stated that it is similar to the dock at the marina. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if there will be a fence around the RV and boat storage area.

Ms. Ellis confirmed. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if the landscape buffer will hide the RV and boat storage area from the
Virginia Capital Trail.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed.

Ms. Ellis stated that the park’s desire is to have the RV and boat storage area screened and

Page 2 of 6



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 20, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Tom Leininger, Planner
Marion Paine, Assistant Administrator Neighborhood Development
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Nancy Ellis, Parks and Recreation Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 40.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C00382018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Jose Ribeiro presented the Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements. He stated that
the proposal was to build a second boathouse and relocate the recreational vehicle (RV) and
boat storage area. He stated that the Master Plan was approved in 2009. He stated that
according to the Special Use Permit (SUP), improvements on the site should be generally
located as shown on the Master Plan. He stated that before a site plan can be turned in,
approval must be made by the Development Review Committee (DRC) to determine the
consistency with the Master Plan. He stated that the existing boathouse is leased by the
College of William & Mary, and that the second boathouse is needed to accommodate the
Williamsburg Boat Club and the general public. He stated that the proposed boathouse will be
built next to the existing boathouse. He stated that the existing boathouse is not built in the
location determined by the Master Plan due to the Resource Protection Area Buffer. He stated
that the location of the RV and boat storage area was already in place before the County
acquired the property. He stated that the Master Plan does not show the RV and boat storage
area. He stated that staff finds the proposal consistent with the adopted Master Plan and the
Shaping Our Shores Report. He stated that if the DRC finds the proposal consistent, a spill
prevention plan shall be submitted with a site plan. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked if the proposal is considered redevelopment.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed. He stated that certain SUP conditions are triggered depending on the
type of development.

Mr. Frank Polster asked if the location that is designated for the RV and boat storage is the
same location as the water treatment plant. 

Ms. Nancy Ellis stated that the RV and boat storage area is considered temporary and can be
adjusted to accommodate the water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that the James City Service Authority has completed a study and it was
approved by the United States Army Corps of Engineers. 

Ms. Ellis stated that the Master Plan would need to be updated to show the location of the
facility because it is not on the approved Master Plan. She stated that the desired location of
the RV and boat storage is in its original location when the County acquired the land. She
stated that the park can accommodate a water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that there is a substantial amount of sealevel rise projected in the park. He
stated that the boat dock is located in the RPA and would be subject to sealevel rise. He
stated that the location of the proposed boathouse would be in the RPA.

Ms. Ellis stated that the boat dock is already existing. She stated that the proposal is to add an
accessible area to the dock. She stated that Mike Woolson of Stormwater and Resource
Protection found the proposed location of the boathouse an acceptable area.

Mr. Polster asked if the boat dock is new or updated.

Ms. Ellis stated that the dock will be extended and be combined with the kayak launch site.

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked if the dock is a floating dock.

Ms. Ellis confirmed and stated that it is similar to the dock at the marina. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if there will be a fence around the RV and boat storage area.

Ms. Ellis confirmed. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if the landscape buffer will hide the RV and boat storage area from the
Virginia Capital Trail.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed.

Ms. Ellis stated that the park’s desire is to have the RV and boat storage area screened and
fenced.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that when the site plan is submitted the buffer will be reviewed. 

Mr. Krapf asked if the new boathouse will generate revenue. 

Ms. Ellis stated that it depends on how the contract is structured. She stated that the lease
agreement with the College of William & Mary is a 10year lease. She stated that each
agreement Parks & Recreation does with a private organization is different. She stated that
there are discussions in the early stages regarding the contract with the Williamsburg Boat
Club. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any further questions.

There were none.

Mr. Polster made a motion to approve the proposal.

The motion passed 50.

2. C00252018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment

Mr. Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Ribeiro presented the Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment. He stated
that the rezoning in 2011 included 64 parcels. He stated that the zoning went from R2,
general residential to MU, mixed use with proffers. He stated that the rezoning adjusted
property lines and included additional rightofway. He stated that the original Master Plan
dedicated 27 acres to residential. He stated that the remaining 20 acres was dedicated to a
new Salvation Army facility. He stated that the Salvation Army is no longer part of the
proposal. He stated that the applicant has proposed 46 multifamily units and some
commercial facilities. He stated that the application was brought to the DRC for discussion
purposes and there is no action required from the Committee. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any studies done regarding the impact the proposal would have
on schools and traffic. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that there had not been a study done.

Mr. Chase Grogg, Landtech Resources, stated that the Salvation Army property was included
in the original traffic study. He stated that the site was listed as apartments and other residential
living. 

Mr. Doug Harbin, Wayne Harbin Builders, stated that the traffic study stated an addition of 12
lots, 24 units of townhomes and 26 apartment units. 

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked how many total units were proposed in the original Salvation Army
location.

Mr. Grogg stated 62 units. 

Mr. Schmidt stated that the new proposal has fewer units than originally proposed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there is any affordable housing proposed.

Page 3 of 6



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 20, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Tom Leininger, Planner
Marion Paine, Assistant Administrator Neighborhood Development
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Nancy Ellis, Parks and Recreation Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 40.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C00382018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Jose Ribeiro presented the Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements. He stated that
the proposal was to build a second boathouse and relocate the recreational vehicle (RV) and
boat storage area. He stated that the Master Plan was approved in 2009. He stated that
according to the Special Use Permit (SUP), improvements on the site should be generally
located as shown on the Master Plan. He stated that before a site plan can be turned in,
approval must be made by the Development Review Committee (DRC) to determine the
consistency with the Master Plan. He stated that the existing boathouse is leased by the
College of William & Mary, and that the second boathouse is needed to accommodate the
Williamsburg Boat Club and the general public. He stated that the proposed boathouse will be
built next to the existing boathouse. He stated that the existing boathouse is not built in the
location determined by the Master Plan due to the Resource Protection Area Buffer. He stated
that the location of the RV and boat storage area was already in place before the County
acquired the property. He stated that the Master Plan does not show the RV and boat storage
area. He stated that staff finds the proposal consistent with the adopted Master Plan and the
Shaping Our Shores Report. He stated that if the DRC finds the proposal consistent, a spill
prevention plan shall be submitted with a site plan. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked if the proposal is considered redevelopment.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed. He stated that certain SUP conditions are triggered depending on the
type of development.

Mr. Frank Polster asked if the location that is designated for the RV and boat storage is the
same location as the water treatment plant. 

Ms. Nancy Ellis stated that the RV and boat storage area is considered temporary and can be
adjusted to accommodate the water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that the James City Service Authority has completed a study and it was
approved by the United States Army Corps of Engineers. 

Ms. Ellis stated that the Master Plan would need to be updated to show the location of the
facility because it is not on the approved Master Plan. She stated that the desired location of
the RV and boat storage is in its original location when the County acquired the land. She
stated that the park can accommodate a water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that there is a substantial amount of sealevel rise projected in the park. He
stated that the boat dock is located in the RPA and would be subject to sealevel rise. He
stated that the location of the proposed boathouse would be in the RPA.

Ms. Ellis stated that the boat dock is already existing. She stated that the proposal is to add an
accessible area to the dock. She stated that Mike Woolson of Stormwater and Resource
Protection found the proposed location of the boathouse an acceptable area.

Mr. Polster asked if the boat dock is new or updated.

Ms. Ellis stated that the dock will be extended and be combined with the kayak launch site.

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked if the dock is a floating dock.

Ms. Ellis confirmed and stated that it is similar to the dock at the marina. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if there will be a fence around the RV and boat storage area.

Ms. Ellis confirmed. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if the landscape buffer will hide the RV and boat storage area from the
Virginia Capital Trail.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed.

Ms. Ellis stated that the park’s desire is to have the RV and boat storage area screened and
fenced.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that when the site plan is submitted the buffer will be reviewed. 

Mr. Krapf asked if the new boathouse will generate revenue. 

Ms. Ellis stated that it depends on how the contract is structured. She stated that the lease
agreement with the College of William & Mary is a 10year lease. She stated that each
agreement Parks & Recreation does with a private organization is different. She stated that
there are discussions in the early stages regarding the contract with the Williamsburg Boat
Club. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any further questions.

There were none.

Mr. Polster made a motion to approve the proposal.

The motion passed 50.

2. C00252018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment

Mr. Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Ribeiro presented the Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment. He stated
that the rezoning in 2011 included 64 parcels. He stated that the zoning went from R2,
general residential to MU, mixed use with proffers. He stated that the rezoning adjusted
property lines and included additional rightofway. He stated that the original Master Plan
dedicated 27 acres to residential. He stated that the remaining 20 acres was dedicated to a
new Salvation Army facility. He stated that the Salvation Army is no longer part of the
proposal. He stated that the applicant has proposed 46 multifamily units and some
commercial facilities. He stated that the application was brought to the DRC for discussion
purposes and there is no action required from the Committee. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any studies done regarding the impact the proposal would have
on schools and traffic. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that there had not been a study done.

Mr. Chase Grogg, Landtech Resources, stated that the Salvation Army property was included
in the original traffic study. He stated that the site was listed as apartments and other residential
living. 

Mr. Doug Harbin, Wayne Harbin Builders, stated that the traffic study stated an addition of 12
lots, 24 units of townhomes and 26 apartment units. 

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked how many total units were proposed in the original Salvation Army
location.

Mr. Grogg stated 62 units. 

Mr. Schmidt stated that the new proposal has fewer units than originally proposed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there is any affordable housing proposed.

Mr. Harbin stated that workforce housing is proposed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there will be a new entrance to Richmond Road.

Mr. Grogg stated that there will not be a new entrance and that the entrance from the original
Master Plan is through the current residential area. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if there will be two entrances connecting to the current residential area.

Mr. Grogg confirmed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there were any plans for the vacant lands next to the Salvation Army.

Mr. Grogg stated that the parcels are owned by private ownership and are not part of the
proposal.

Mr. Haldeman asked if the proffers from the original rezoning remain.

Mr. Harbin stated that there will be a proffer amendment regarding the Salvation Army
property. He stated that there is a possibility of cash proffers.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff will need to check with the County Attorney’s office regarding the
ability to accept cash proffers. He stated that under current Ordinances, the County cannot
accept cash proffers, but this project was approved before the legislation changed. He stated
that there is a possibility to amend the current proffers.

Mr. Krapf stated that the Stonehouse Master Plan had a similar situation.

Mr. Polster stated that the road width for Forest Heights Road is narrow. He stated that he is
uncomfortable with the locations of the entry and exit locations.

Mr. Harbin stated that they have met with the Virginia Department of Transportation to meet
its standards.

Mr. Polster stated that there would be a lot of traffic generated. 

Mr. Grogg stated that there can be some modifications made to reduce the amount of parking
on the narrow stretches of the road. 

Mr. Polster asked if there was a road that would go through the proposed development.

Mr. Grogg confirmed and stated that there will be a road going through the neighborhood.

Mr. Polster stated that he had concerns with the buffering of the neighborhood.

Mr. Harbin stated that there are only six homes and there will be a 25foot buffer. He stated
that the stormwater facilities and common areas will be located between the homes. 

Mr. Polster asked about the height of the townhomes.

Mr. Harbin stated that the townhomes will be twostory.

Mr. Polster stated that he has concerns with the neighbors facing the backyards of the current
residents. He asked where the drainage will go.

Page 4 of 6



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 20, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Tom Leininger, Planner
Marion Paine, Assistant Administrator Neighborhood Development
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Nancy Ellis, Parks and Recreation Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 40.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C00382018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Jose Ribeiro presented the Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements. He stated that
the proposal was to build a second boathouse and relocate the recreational vehicle (RV) and
boat storage area. He stated that the Master Plan was approved in 2009. He stated that
according to the Special Use Permit (SUP), improvements on the site should be generally
located as shown on the Master Plan. He stated that before a site plan can be turned in,
approval must be made by the Development Review Committee (DRC) to determine the
consistency with the Master Plan. He stated that the existing boathouse is leased by the
College of William & Mary, and that the second boathouse is needed to accommodate the
Williamsburg Boat Club and the general public. He stated that the proposed boathouse will be
built next to the existing boathouse. He stated that the existing boathouse is not built in the
location determined by the Master Plan due to the Resource Protection Area Buffer. He stated
that the location of the RV and boat storage area was already in place before the County
acquired the property. He stated that the Master Plan does not show the RV and boat storage
area. He stated that staff finds the proposal consistent with the adopted Master Plan and the
Shaping Our Shores Report. He stated that if the DRC finds the proposal consistent, a spill
prevention plan shall be submitted with a site plan. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked if the proposal is considered redevelopment.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed. He stated that certain SUP conditions are triggered depending on the
type of development.

Mr. Frank Polster asked if the location that is designated for the RV and boat storage is the
same location as the water treatment plant. 

Ms. Nancy Ellis stated that the RV and boat storage area is considered temporary and can be
adjusted to accommodate the water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that the James City Service Authority has completed a study and it was
approved by the United States Army Corps of Engineers. 

Ms. Ellis stated that the Master Plan would need to be updated to show the location of the
facility because it is not on the approved Master Plan. She stated that the desired location of
the RV and boat storage is in its original location when the County acquired the land. She
stated that the park can accommodate a water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that there is a substantial amount of sealevel rise projected in the park. He
stated that the boat dock is located in the RPA and would be subject to sealevel rise. He
stated that the location of the proposed boathouse would be in the RPA.

Ms. Ellis stated that the boat dock is already existing. She stated that the proposal is to add an
accessible area to the dock. She stated that Mike Woolson of Stormwater and Resource
Protection found the proposed location of the boathouse an acceptable area.

Mr. Polster asked if the boat dock is new or updated.

Ms. Ellis stated that the dock will be extended and be combined with the kayak launch site.

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked if the dock is a floating dock.

Ms. Ellis confirmed and stated that it is similar to the dock at the marina. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if there will be a fence around the RV and boat storage area.

Ms. Ellis confirmed. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if the landscape buffer will hide the RV and boat storage area from the
Virginia Capital Trail.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed.

Ms. Ellis stated that the park’s desire is to have the RV and boat storage area screened and
fenced.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that when the site plan is submitted the buffer will be reviewed. 

Mr. Krapf asked if the new boathouse will generate revenue. 

Ms. Ellis stated that it depends on how the contract is structured. She stated that the lease
agreement with the College of William & Mary is a 10year lease. She stated that each
agreement Parks & Recreation does with a private organization is different. She stated that
there are discussions in the early stages regarding the contract with the Williamsburg Boat
Club. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any further questions.

There were none.

Mr. Polster made a motion to approve the proposal.

The motion passed 50.

2. C00252018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment

Mr. Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Ribeiro presented the Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment. He stated
that the rezoning in 2011 included 64 parcels. He stated that the zoning went from R2,
general residential to MU, mixed use with proffers. He stated that the rezoning adjusted
property lines and included additional rightofway. He stated that the original Master Plan
dedicated 27 acres to residential. He stated that the remaining 20 acres was dedicated to a
new Salvation Army facility. He stated that the Salvation Army is no longer part of the
proposal. He stated that the applicant has proposed 46 multifamily units and some
commercial facilities. He stated that the application was brought to the DRC for discussion
purposes and there is no action required from the Committee. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any studies done regarding the impact the proposal would have
on schools and traffic. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that there had not been a study done.

Mr. Chase Grogg, Landtech Resources, stated that the Salvation Army property was included
in the original traffic study. He stated that the site was listed as apartments and other residential
living. 

Mr. Doug Harbin, Wayne Harbin Builders, stated that the traffic study stated an addition of 12
lots, 24 units of townhomes and 26 apartment units. 

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked how many total units were proposed in the original Salvation Army
location.

Mr. Grogg stated 62 units. 

Mr. Schmidt stated that the new proposal has fewer units than originally proposed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there is any affordable housing proposed.

Mr. Harbin stated that workforce housing is proposed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there will be a new entrance to Richmond Road.

Mr. Grogg stated that there will not be a new entrance and that the entrance from the original
Master Plan is through the current residential area. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if there will be two entrances connecting to the current residential area.

Mr. Grogg confirmed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there were any plans for the vacant lands next to the Salvation Army.

Mr. Grogg stated that the parcels are owned by private ownership and are not part of the
proposal.

Mr. Haldeman asked if the proffers from the original rezoning remain.

Mr. Harbin stated that there will be a proffer amendment regarding the Salvation Army
property. He stated that there is a possibility of cash proffers.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff will need to check with the County Attorney’s office regarding the
ability to accept cash proffers. He stated that under current Ordinances, the County cannot
accept cash proffers, but this project was approved before the legislation changed. He stated
that there is a possibility to amend the current proffers.

Mr. Krapf stated that the Stonehouse Master Plan had a similar situation.

Mr. Polster stated that the road width for Forest Heights Road is narrow. He stated that he is
uncomfortable with the locations of the entry and exit locations.

Mr. Harbin stated that they have met with the Virginia Department of Transportation to meet
its standards.

Mr. Polster stated that there would be a lot of traffic generated. 

Mr. Grogg stated that there can be some modifications made to reduce the amount of parking
on the narrow stretches of the road. 

Mr. Polster asked if there was a road that would go through the proposed development.

Mr. Grogg confirmed and stated that there will be a road going through the neighborhood.

Mr. Polster stated that he had concerns with the buffering of the neighborhood.

Mr. Harbin stated that there are only six homes and there will be a 25foot buffer. He stated
that the stormwater facilities and common areas will be located between the homes. 

Mr. Polster asked about the height of the townhomes.

Mr. Harbin stated that the townhomes will be twostory.

Mr. Polster stated that he has concerns with the neighbors facing the backyards of the current
residents. He asked where the drainage will go.

Mr. Grogg stated that the location of drainage has not been determined and that they are going
to meet with James City County to help determine that location. He stated that there are
existing Best Management Practices (BMP). He stated that they want to utilize existing BMPs
as much as possible. 

Mr. Polster stated that in the original proffer, there was an agreement on the maintenance on
the BMP. He asked if that agreement will continue.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that there has not been a discussion on the specifics of the maintenance of
the BMP. He stated that more research needs to be done.

Mr. Polster asked if there is a 50foot buffer along the front.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed.

Mr. Polster asked if there has been any research on the specifics on the buffer in regards to
height.

Mr. Grogg stated that the research has not been done at this moment.

Mr. Krapf stated that more information will come from the site plan process.

Mr. Grogg stated that a master plan amendment will need to be done first.

Mr. Polster asked if all of the homes will be affordable.

Mr. Harbin stated that he wants to make most of the homes affordable. He stated that the
company he works for has experience working with affordable housing.

Mr. Schmidt stated that he had concerns with the buffers and elevation differences. 

Mr. Krapf opened the meeting to the public for additional comments.

1. Ms. Mildred Walker, 897 Tyler Drive, stated that she had concerns about the entrance
being narrow. 

2. Mr. Gary Moore, 158 Forest Heights, stated that he lives near the entrance of the new
development. He stated that his concern is the traffic generated. 

Mr. Harbin stated that he wants to have a community meeting as plans are being developed. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that for MixedUse Zoning, a single use cannot take up more than 80% of
a property. He stated that the MixedUse Zoning allows for more flexibility of lot lines. 

Mr. Krapf stated that he would like to see the assisted living facility be part of the proposal.

Mr. Moore asked if the residential homes north of the Salvation Army property would be
included in any future development.

Mr. Harbin stated that since the lots are privately owned, they would need to sell off the lots
before any new development could be done. 

Mr. Grogg stated that the property lines would need to be realigned as well.

Mr. Schmidt asked if there are any plans to reach out to the neighbors north of the proposal.

Page 5 of 6



M I N U T E S
JAMES CITY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

REGULAR MEETING
Building A Large Conference Room

101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
June 20, 2018

4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Rich Krapf called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL

Present:
Rich Krapf, Chair
Danny Schmidt
Frank Polster
Jack Haldeman

Staff:
Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner
Tom Leininger, Planner
Marion Paine, Assistant Administrator Neighborhood Development
John Risinger, Community Development Assistant
Nancy Ellis, Parks and Recreation Administrator

C. MINUTES

1. May 23, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Mr. Jack Haldeman made a motion to approve the minutes.

The minutes were approved by a vote of 40.

D. OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

E. NEW BUSINESS

1. C00382018. Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements

Mr. Rich Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Jose Ribeiro presented the Chickahominy Riverfront Park Improvements. He stated that
the proposal was to build a second boathouse and relocate the recreational vehicle (RV) and
boat storage area. He stated that the Master Plan was approved in 2009. He stated that
according to the Special Use Permit (SUP), improvements on the site should be generally
located as shown on the Master Plan. He stated that before a site plan can be turned in,
approval must be made by the Development Review Committee (DRC) to determine the
consistency with the Master Plan. He stated that the existing boathouse is leased by the
College of William & Mary, and that the second boathouse is needed to accommodate the
Williamsburg Boat Club and the general public. He stated that the proposed boathouse will be
built next to the existing boathouse. He stated that the existing boathouse is not built in the
location determined by the Master Plan due to the Resource Protection Area Buffer. He stated
that the location of the RV and boat storage area was already in place before the County
acquired the property. He stated that the Master Plan does not show the RV and boat storage
area. He stated that staff finds the proposal consistent with the adopted Master Plan and the
Shaping Our Shores Report. He stated that if the DRC finds the proposal consistent, a spill
prevention plan shall be submitted with a site plan. 

Mr. Jack Haldeman asked if the proposal is considered redevelopment.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed. He stated that certain SUP conditions are triggered depending on the
type of development.

Mr. Frank Polster asked if the location that is designated for the RV and boat storage is the
same location as the water treatment plant. 

Ms. Nancy Ellis stated that the RV and boat storage area is considered temporary and can be
adjusted to accommodate the water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that the James City Service Authority has completed a study and it was
approved by the United States Army Corps of Engineers. 

Ms. Ellis stated that the Master Plan would need to be updated to show the location of the
facility because it is not on the approved Master Plan. She stated that the desired location of
the RV and boat storage is in its original location when the County acquired the land. She
stated that the park can accommodate a water treatment facility. 

Mr. Polster stated that there is a substantial amount of sealevel rise projected in the park. He
stated that the boat dock is located in the RPA and would be subject to sealevel rise. He
stated that the location of the proposed boathouse would be in the RPA.

Ms. Ellis stated that the boat dock is already existing. She stated that the proposal is to add an
accessible area to the dock. She stated that Mike Woolson of Stormwater and Resource
Protection found the proposed location of the boathouse an acceptable area.

Mr. Polster asked if the boat dock is new or updated.

Ms. Ellis stated that the dock will be extended and be combined with the kayak launch site.

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked if the dock is a floating dock.

Ms. Ellis confirmed and stated that it is similar to the dock at the marina. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if there will be a fence around the RV and boat storage area.

Ms. Ellis confirmed. 

Mr. Schmidt asked if the landscape buffer will hide the RV and boat storage area from the
Virginia Capital Trail.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed.

Ms. Ellis stated that the park’s desire is to have the RV and boat storage area screened and
fenced.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that when the site plan is submitted the buffer will be reviewed. 

Mr. Krapf asked if the new boathouse will generate revenue. 

Ms. Ellis stated that it depends on how the contract is structured. She stated that the lease
agreement with the College of William & Mary is a 10year lease. She stated that each
agreement Parks & Recreation does with a private organization is different. She stated that
there are discussions in the early stages regarding the contract with the Williamsburg Boat
Club. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any further questions.

There were none.

Mr. Polster made a motion to approve the proposal.

The motion passed 50.

2. C00252018. Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment

Mr. Krapf opened the discussion. 

Mr. Ribeiro presented the Forest Heights/Neighbors Drive Rezoning Amendment. He stated
that the rezoning in 2011 included 64 parcels. He stated that the zoning went from R2,
general residential to MU, mixed use with proffers. He stated that the rezoning adjusted
property lines and included additional rightofway. He stated that the original Master Plan
dedicated 27 acres to residential. He stated that the remaining 20 acres was dedicated to a
new Salvation Army facility. He stated that the Salvation Army is no longer part of the
proposal. He stated that the applicant has proposed 46 multifamily units and some
commercial facilities. He stated that the application was brought to the DRC for discussion
purposes and there is no action required from the Committee. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any studies done regarding the impact the proposal would have
on schools and traffic. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that there had not been a study done.

Mr. Chase Grogg, Landtech Resources, stated that the Salvation Army property was included
in the original traffic study. He stated that the site was listed as apartments and other residential
living. 

Mr. Doug Harbin, Wayne Harbin Builders, stated that the traffic study stated an addition of 12
lots, 24 units of townhomes and 26 apartment units. 

Mr. Danny Schmidt asked how many total units were proposed in the original Salvation Army
location.

Mr. Grogg stated 62 units. 

Mr. Schmidt stated that the new proposal has fewer units than originally proposed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there is any affordable housing proposed.

Mr. Harbin stated that workforce housing is proposed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there will be a new entrance to Richmond Road.

Mr. Grogg stated that there will not be a new entrance and that the entrance from the original
Master Plan is through the current residential area. 

Mr. Haldeman asked if there will be two entrances connecting to the current residential area.

Mr. Grogg confirmed.

Mr. Haldeman asked if there were any plans for the vacant lands next to the Salvation Army.

Mr. Grogg stated that the parcels are owned by private ownership and are not part of the
proposal.

Mr. Haldeman asked if the proffers from the original rezoning remain.

Mr. Harbin stated that there will be a proffer amendment regarding the Salvation Army
property. He stated that there is a possibility of cash proffers.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff will need to check with the County Attorney’s office regarding the
ability to accept cash proffers. He stated that under current Ordinances, the County cannot
accept cash proffers, but this project was approved before the legislation changed. He stated
that there is a possibility to amend the current proffers.

Mr. Krapf stated that the Stonehouse Master Plan had a similar situation.

Mr. Polster stated that the road width for Forest Heights Road is narrow. He stated that he is
uncomfortable with the locations of the entry and exit locations.

Mr. Harbin stated that they have met with the Virginia Department of Transportation to meet
its standards.

Mr. Polster stated that there would be a lot of traffic generated. 

Mr. Grogg stated that there can be some modifications made to reduce the amount of parking
on the narrow stretches of the road. 

Mr. Polster asked if there was a road that would go through the proposed development.

Mr. Grogg confirmed and stated that there will be a road going through the neighborhood.

Mr. Polster stated that he had concerns with the buffering of the neighborhood.

Mr. Harbin stated that there are only six homes and there will be a 25foot buffer. He stated
that the stormwater facilities and common areas will be located between the homes. 

Mr. Polster asked about the height of the townhomes.

Mr. Harbin stated that the townhomes will be twostory.

Mr. Polster stated that he has concerns with the neighbors facing the backyards of the current
residents. He asked where the drainage will go.

Mr. Grogg stated that the location of drainage has not been determined and that they are going
to meet with James City County to help determine that location. He stated that there are
existing Best Management Practices (BMP). He stated that they want to utilize existing BMPs
as much as possible. 

Mr. Polster stated that in the original proffer, there was an agreement on the maintenance on
the BMP. He asked if that agreement will continue.

Mr. Ribeiro stated that there has not been a discussion on the specifics of the maintenance of
the BMP. He stated that more research needs to be done.

Mr. Polster asked if there is a 50foot buffer along the front.

Mr. Ribeiro confirmed.

Mr. Polster asked if there has been any research on the specifics on the buffer in regards to
height.

Mr. Grogg stated that the research has not been done at this moment.

Mr. Krapf stated that more information will come from the site plan process.

Mr. Grogg stated that a master plan amendment will need to be done first.

Mr. Polster asked if all of the homes will be affordable.

Mr. Harbin stated that he wants to make most of the homes affordable. He stated that the
company he works for has experience working with affordable housing.

Mr. Schmidt stated that he had concerns with the buffers and elevation differences. 

Mr. Krapf opened the meeting to the public for additional comments.

1. Ms. Mildred Walker, 897 Tyler Drive, stated that she had concerns about the entrance
being narrow. 

2. Mr. Gary Moore, 158 Forest Heights, stated that he lives near the entrance of the new
development. He stated that his concern is the traffic generated. 

Mr. Harbin stated that he wants to have a community meeting as plans are being developed. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that for MixedUse Zoning, a single use cannot take up more than 80% of
a property. He stated that the MixedUse Zoning allows for more flexibility of lot lines. 

Mr. Krapf stated that he would like to see the assisted living facility be part of the proposal.

Mr. Moore asked if the residential homes north of the Salvation Army property would be
included in any future development.

Mr. Harbin stated that since the lots are privately owned, they would need to sell off the lots
before any new development could be done. 

Mr. Grogg stated that the property lines would need to be realigned as well.

Mr. Schmidt asked if there are any plans to reach out to the neighbors north of the proposal.

Mr. Harbin stated that there is a lot of construction debris and there is large dropoff in this
area.

Mr. Polster stated that there are lots owned by the County that can be developed in the
future. 

Ms. Marion Paine stated that there is an agreement with Housing Partnerships to build on the
four lots in Forest Heights. She stated that the timeline has not been determined. 

Mr. Krapf asked if there were any further comments.

There were none.

F. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Haldeman made a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Mr. Krapf adjourned the meeting at 4:45 p.m.

Page 6 of 6

tleininger
Typewritten Text
Mr. Rich Krapf, Chair

tleininger
Typewritten Text
Mr. Paul Holt, Secretary

tleininger
Line

tleininger
Line



AGENDA ITEM NO. E.1.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 8/22/2018 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Roberta Sulouff, Senior Planner

SUBJECT: C180071. BASF Temporary Overhead Power Line

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Staff Report Staff Report
Attachment 1. Location Map Backup Material
Attachment 2. Applicant Exhibit Backup Material
Attachment 3. Zoning Enforcement
Letter Backup Material

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 8/17/2018  9:17 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  3:21 PM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 8/17/2018  3:29 PM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  3:30 PM



CONCEPTUAL PLAN 18-0071. BASF Temporary Overhead Power Line 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 1 of 2 

SUMMARY FACTS 

 

Applicants: Mr. Ted Locascio and Mr. William Magann, 

Jr., W.F. Magann Corporation 

 

Land Owner: BASF Corporation 

 

Proposal: To permit a temporary overhead power line 

connection to a temporary construction trailer 

 

Reason for  

Development 

Review Committee 

(DRC) Review: Section 24-200(c) of the Zoning Ordinance 

requires all new utility connections to be 

placed underground. The applicant has 

requested a waiver to this requirement, which 

may be permitted by approval of the Planning 

Commission per the recommendation of the 

DRC as described in Section 24-200(c) of the 

Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Location: 8961 Pocahontas Trail 

 

Tax Map/Parcel No.: 5940100003 

 

Project Acreage: ± 648.8 acres 

 

Current Zoning:  M-2, General Industrial  

 

Comprehensive Plan: General Industry 

 

Primary Service Area: Inside 

 

Staff Contact:  Roberta Sulouff, Senior Planner 

FACTORS FAVORABLE 

 

1. Staff finds that the application meets the criteria for consideration 

of waivers listed in Section 24-200(c), subject to the conditions of 

approval listed in staff’s recommendation. 

 

FACTORS UNFAVORABLE 

 

1. With the proposed conditions, staff finds no unfavorable factors. 

 

SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the DRC recommend approval of this waiver 

request to the Planning Commission with the condition that the 

overhead power line and all related infrastructure be removed by May 

17, 2019, or within 60 days of the completion of construction, 

concurrent to the removal of the existing temporary construction 

trailer which was permitted by Zoning Enforcement on May 17, 2018, 

or such extended time period as may be approved by the Zoning 

Administrator. 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

• Properties to the north, east, and west are zoned M-1, Limited 

Business/Industrial and M-2, General Industrial. 

 

• Property to the south is zoned, PL, Public Lands (Fort Eustis). 

 

• Most surrounding properties are designated General Industry by 

the adopted Comprehensive Plan, with the exception of the 

portion of Fort Eustis lying south of the property, which is 

designated Federal, State or County Land. 

  



CONCEPTUAL PLAN 18-0071. BASF Temporary Overhead Power Line 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 2 of 2 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

• On May 17, 2018, Zoning Enforcement permitted the placement 

of a temporary construction trailer on the subject property 

(Attachment No. 2). Approval of the temporary structure was 

conditional upon its removal in a year’s time or within 60 days of 

the completion of construction, with opportunity for the Zoning 

Administrator to extend that period with reasonable cause. 

 

• The applicant is requesting permission to run 230 feet of overhead 

power line from an existing overhead pole to the temporary 

structure. 

 

• The line would be located far interior to the BASF site and would 

be placed upon an existing Dominion Energy easement. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

 

The applicant has requested a waiver to Section 24-200, Public 

Utilities, of the Zoning Ordinance. That section permits the Planning 

Commission to waive the underground utility requirement should the 

DRC give a favorable recommendation based upon consideration of 

the following circumstances, listed in Section 24-200(c): voltage 

requirements, existing overhead service, existing tree cover and 

physical features of the site and the surrounding area. 

 

As the line would be temporary, of a relatively short span, connecting 

to an existing overhead pole, and located far interior to the site, staff 

finds that this application meets the criteria for consideration of waiver 

as found in Section 24-200(c). 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the DRC recommend approval of this waiver 

request to the Planning Commission with the condition that the 

overhead power line and all related infrastructure be removed by May 

17, 2019, or within 60 days of the completion of construction, 

concurrent to the removal of the existing temporary construction 

trailer which was permitted by Zoning Enforcement on May 17, 2018, 

or such extended time period as may be approved by the Zoning 

Administrator. 

 

 

 

RS/nb 

CP18-0071BASFTmpPwrLn 

 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 

2. Applicant Exhibit 

3. Zoning Enforcement Letter 



EndeavorDr

Pocahontas Trl

W
ar

w i
ck

Bl
vd

BasfDr

Green
Mount

Industrial Park

Fort
Eustis

James
River Commerce

Center

Skiffes Creek
Industrial Park

BASF

JCC C-18-0071
8961 Pocahontas Trail Temporary Power Line

« 8961 Pocahontas Trail

Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia. The data contained herein are the
property of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Distribution of any of these
data to anyone not licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 10.1

Miles

!"̀$



C-18-0071
BASF Temporary Overhead
Power Lines



950 0 950 1,900 2,850475
Feet

Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia.  The data contained herein are the property 
of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  Distribution of any of these data to anyone not 
licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.

Rsulouff
Typewritten Text
Pocahontas Trail

Rsulouff
Text Box
BASF

Rsulouff
Callout
Approx project area

Rsulouff
Typewritten Text
Carter's Grove

Rsulouff
Typewritten Text



smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Oval

smagann
Oval

smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Callout
230' from DOM pole to our temp service.



smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Oval

smagann
Oval

smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Line

smagann
Callout
Existing Pole

smagann
Callout
Our Teporary pole

smagann
Callout
Run 230' of temporary overhead 10' off ground







AGENDA ITEM NO. E.2.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 8/22/2018 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner II

SUBJECT: C180064. 7083 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Staff Report Staff Report
Attachment No.1. Conceptual Plan
Layout Exhibit

Attachment No. 2. Applicant
Exception Request Exhibit

Attachment No. 3. Location Map Exhibit

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 8/17/2018  9:27 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  3:23 PM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 8/17/2018  3:29 PM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  3:30 PM



CONCEPTUAL PLAN-18-0064. 7083 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 1 of 3 

SUMMARY FACTS 
 

Applicant: Chase Grogg 
 

Land Owners: Brian Menzel, Barbara Vellrath and Bonnie 

Amo 
 

Proposal: Nine-lot subdivision on an undeveloped tract 

of land 
 

Location: 7083 Menzels Road 
 

Tax Map/Parcel No.: 2020100028 
 

Project Acreage: ±74.75 acres 
 

Current Zoning:  A-1, General Agriculture 
 

Comprehensive Plan: Rural Lands 
 

Primary Service Area 

(PSA): Outside 
 

Staff Contact:  Jose Ribeiro, Senior Planner II 
 

REASON FOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

 

Section 19-73 of the Subdivision Ordinance requires that all minor 

subdivisions of three or more lots shall limit direct access from the 

existing road to one shared driveway. The applicant would like to have 

each lot served by an individual driveway and has requested an 

exception to this section of the Subdivision Ordinance as permitted 

under Section 19-18, Exceptions.  

 

 

 

 

FACTORS FAVORABLE 

 

1. The Fire Department, Health Department and the Virginia 

Department of Transportation (VDOT) have stated no objection to 

this exception request.  

 

FACTORS UNFAVORABLE 
 

1. Staff finds that the nine contiguous lots do not meet criteria (e) 

which specifically excludes requests based on monetary reasons 

or personal hardship.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Development Review Committee (DRC) 

recommend denial of the exception request to allow individual 

driveways for Lot Nos. 1-9 to the Planning Commission.  

 

PROJECT HISTORY 
 

Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors: 7083 Menzels Road 

was included in the establishment of the Wright’s Island Agricultural 

and Forestal District (AFD) on October 6, 1986. The Board of 

Supervisors adopted resolution to withdraw this property from the 

Wright’s Island AFD during the AFD renewal process in 2010.   

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

• Subdivision of the existing parcel into nine new single-family lots. 

As would be required by the Ordinance provisions for minor 

subdivision the applicant is proposing subdivision of the nine lots 

in two phases: Phase I consisting of four lots and Phase II 

consisting of five lots. In order to be considered as a minor 

subdivision (subdivision of no more than five lots) each phase will 

be platted separately. It would be permitted by the Ordinance for 

each phase of development to have one shared driveway for Lot 



CONCEPTUAL PLAN-18-0064. 7083 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 2 of 3 

Nos. 1-4 and another for Lot Nos. 5-9. However, as currently 

proposed, the applicant has shown each lot with individual 

driveways. 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

• Surrounding properties to the north, south, east and west are zoned 

A-1, General Agricultural and designated Rural Lands/Open 

Space or Recreation on the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

 

Section 19-73 of the Subdivision Ordinance states that a shared 

driveway shall be required for any subdivision with three or more 

undeveloped lots.  This requirement, along with a number of other 

updates, was added to the Subdivision Ordinance in 1999, after having 

been developed by a citizen and stakeholder committee charged with 

revisions to the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances at that time.  This 

update was preceded by inclusion of Rural Land Use Standards in the 

Development Standards section of the 1997 Comprehensive Plan 

which encouraged preservation of the natural, wooded and rural 

character of the County by various measures, including “minimizing 

the number of street and driveway intersections along the main road 

by providing common driveways and interconnection of 

developments.”  This language has remained in subsequent versions 

of the Comprehensive Plan’s Rural Lands Development Standards, 

including the current 2035 Comprehensive Plan.  Over the years, many 

minor subdivisions have been approved with shared driveways, both 

inside the PSA and outside the PSA for minor subdivisions with larger 

lots taking access from rural roads.   

Staff has not found any Subdivision Ordinance exceptions for shared 

driveways that have been approved.     

The analysis below provides information on each of the criteria listed 

in the Subdivision Ordinance Exception section. 

 

4. The Commission shall not approve any exception unless it first 

receives a recommendation from the DRC and unless it finds that:  

 

a. Strict adherence to the Ordinance requirement will cause 

substantial injustice or hardship;  

 

Staff does not find a hardship outlined in the applicant’s 

document that meets the hardship standards, as further 

discussed below. 

 

b. The granting of the exception will not be detrimental to public 

safety, health or welfare, and will not adversely affect the 

property of others;  

 

As discussed in (d) below, VDOT has indicated that the 

separate driveways would meet VDOT minimum standards. 

However, the County’s higher access standard is in part to 

address public safety, health and welfare through the goals of 

access management and safer progression of traffic by limited 

entry points, even in rural areas with a lesser volume of 

traffic. The higher standard also helps in retaining the rural 

character of these areas and roadways. 

 

c. The facts upon which the request is based are unique to the 

property and are not applicable generally to other property so 

as not to make reasonably practicable the formulation of 

general regulations to be adopted as an amendment to this 

chapter;  

 

Staff does not find that the facts upon which the request is 

based are unique to the property. There are “fingers” of the 

Resource Protection Area (RPA) crossing the property as 

shown on the conceptual plan layout. At this time, the RPA 

shown is based on Geographic Information System mapping 

and has not yet been formerly delineated. While the presence 



CONCEPTUAL PLAN-18-0064. 7083 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 3 of 3 

of the RPA features may affect the feasible location of a 

shared driveway, it appears that there is enough area to 

locate a shared driveway outside of these features. RPAs are 

common environmental features in the County and it is not 

unique to have them influence development layouts to some 

degree. 

 

d. No objection to the exception has been received in writing 

from the Transportation Department, Health Department or 

Fire Chief; and  

 

Staff has consulted with applicable reviewing agencies, 

specifically with VDOT, the Virginia Department of Health 

and the Fire Department, and there was no objection to the 

exception request.  VDOT staff has indicated that VDOT does 

not have access management standards for driveways on 

secondary roads. 

  

e. The hardship or injustice is created by the unusual character 

of the property, including dimensions and topography, or by 

other extraordinary situation or condition of such property. 

Personal, financial, or self-inflicted hardship or injustice shall 

not be considered proper justification for an exception.  

 

As discussed above, staff finds that neither the 

dimensions/building area of the proposed lots nor the 

topography of the lots are unusual compared with other 

parcels, or of a nature that would preclude the placement of 

a shared driveway. Specifically, with regard to topography, 

the front portion of the property adjacent to Little Creek Dam 

and Menzels Roads does not appear to have steep slopes, and 

appears to be comparable from a topographic standpoint to 

the locations of past shared driveways approved under this 

section. Staff notes that there appears to be enough area in 

the property (within the 85-foot wide front setback) to locate 

a shared driveway outside of steep slopes or environmental 

features such as the RPA (The ordinance requires a driveway 

of a minimum of 10 feet wide.) The exception criteria states 

that financial hardship shall not be considered a proper 

justification for an exception. As noted above, staff does not 

find a hardship outlined in the applicant’s document that 

meets the hardship standards for proposed Lot Nos. 1-9. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the DRC recommend denial of the exception 

request to allow individual driveways for Lot Nos. 1-9 to the Planning 

Commission. 

 

 

JR/md 

CP18-0064-7083MenzelsRd 

 

Attachments: 

1. Conceptual Plan Layout 

2. Applicant Exception Request 

3. Location Map 











Men
ze

ls
RdUncles Nck

Lit
tle

Cr
ee

k
Da

m
Rd

Mill Creek

Wrights
Island

River's
Bend @ Uncles

Neck

Roper,
George

W. II

Minor

JCC C-18-0064
7083 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision

«

7083 Menzels Road
Subdivisions
Wright's Island AFD
Mill Creek AFD

Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia. The data contained herein are the
property of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Distribution of any of these
data to anyone not licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.50.05

Miles



AGENDA ITEM NO. E.3.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 8/22/2018 

TO: The Development Review Committee 

FROM: Alex Baruch, Senior Planner

SUBJECT: S00222018. 9812 Old Stage Rd. Minor Subdivision

ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

Staff Report Staff Report
Location Map Backup Material
Subdivision Plat Backup Material
Applicant Exception Request Backup Material

REVIEWERS:

Department Reviewer Action Date
Development Review
Committee Cook, Ellen Approved 8/17/2018  10:34 AM

Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  3:28 PM

Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 8/17/2018  3:30 PM
Development Review
Committee Holt, Paul Approved 8/17/2018  3:30 PM



Subdivision-0022-2018. 9812 Old Stage Road Minor Subdivision 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 1 of 3 

SUMMARY FACTS 
 

Applicant: Sam Bikkers 
 

Land Owner: NICELAND FARM LLC 
 

Proposal: Five-lot subdivision, four new single-family 

lots and one existing single-family lot 
 

Location: 9812 Old Stage Road 
 

Tax Map/Parcel ID No.: 0420100008 
 

Project Acreage: ±227.99 acres 
 

Current Zoning:  A-1, General Agriculture 
 

Comprehensive Plan: Rural Lands 
 

Primary Service Area 

(PSA): Outside 
 

Staff Contact:  Alex Baruch, Senior Planner 
 

REASON FOR PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 

 

Section 19-73 of the Subdivision Ordinance requires that all minor 

subdivisions of three or more lots shall limit direct access from the 

existing road to one shared driveway. The applicant has requested an 

exception to this section of the Subdivision Ordinance as permitted 

under Section 19-18, Exceptions.  

 

FACTORS FAVORABLE 

 

1. The Fire Department, Health Department and the Virginia 

Department of Transportation (VDOT) have stated no objection to 

this exception request.  

2. Staff finds that utilizing a shared driveway for Lot No. 4 would 

not be possible as it is not contiguous with the other three 

undeveloped lots and meets the exception criteria. 

 

FACTORS UNFAVORABLE 
 

1. Staff finds that the three contiguous lots (Lot Nos. 1-3) do not 

meet criteria (e) which specifically excludes requests based on 

monetary reasons or personal hardship.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the Development Review Committee (DRC) 

recommend approval of the exception request to allow an individual 

driveway for Lot No. 4 to the Planning Commission.  

 

Staff recommends that the DRC recommend denial of the exception 

request to allow individual driveways for Lot Nos. 1-3 to the Planning 

Commission.  
 

PROJECT HISTORY 
 

Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors: 9812 Old Stage 

Road has been historically used as farm land. Dating back to 1937, a 

fire tower has been located on the property. This property was included 

in the establishment of the Barnes Swamp Agricultural and Forestal 

District (AFD) on December 1, 1986. The portions of the property 

included in the four new single-family lots of this subdivision are 

being withdrawn from the Barnes Swamp AFD during the 2018 

renewal cycle.   

 

 

 

 

  
 



Subdivision-0022-2018. 9812 Old Stage Road Minor Subdivision 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 2 of 3 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

• A proposed five-lot subdivision consisting of four new single-

family lots and one existing single-family lot. 

 

SURROUNDING ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

• Surrounding properties to the west, east and south are zoned A-1, 

General Agricultural and designated Rural Lands on the 

Comprehensive Plan.  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

 

Section 19-73 of the Subdivision Ordinance states that a shared 

driveway shall be required for any subdivision with three or more 

undeveloped lots.  This requirement, along with a number of other 

updates, was added to the Subdivision Ordinance in 1999, after having 

been developed by a citizen and stakeholder committee charged with 

revisions to the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances at that time.  This 

update was preceded by inclusion of Rural Land Use Standards in the 

Development Standards section of the 1997 Comprehensive Plan 

which encouraged preservation of the natural, wooded and rural 

character of the County by various measures, including “minimizing 

the number of street and driveway intersections along the main road 

by providing common driveways and interconnection of 

developments.”  This language has remained in subsequent versions 

of the Comprehensive Plan’s Rural Lands Development Standards, 

including the current 2035 Comprehensive Plan.  Over the years, many 

minor subdivisions have been approved with shared driveways, both 

inside the PSA and outside the PSA for minor subdivisions with larger 

lots taking access from rural roads.   

Staff has not found any Subdivision Ordinance exceptions for shared 

driveways that have been approved.     

The analysis below provides information on each of the criteria listed 

in the Subdivision Ordinance Exception section. 

4. The Commission shall not approve any exception unless it first 

receives a recommendation from the DRC and unless it finds that:  

 

a. Strict adherence to the Ordinance requirement will cause 

substantial injustice or hardship;  

 

Due to past subdivision actions, the proposed Lot No. 4 is 

physically separated from the other three proposed lots by 

another property. In this instance, requiring a shared 

driveway would cause substantial hardship as it would 

require the property owner to obtain access through the 

adjoining property, which the adjoining property owner may 

be unwilling to allow and which might cause other issues of 

compliance with the County’s Ordinances. However, for 

proposed Lot Nos. 1-3, staff does not find a hardship outlined 

in the applicant’s document that meets the hardship 

standards, as further discussed below. 

 

b. The granting of the exception will not be detrimental to public 

safety, health or welfare, and will not adversely affect the 

property of others;  

 

As discussed in (d) below, VDOT has indicated that the 

separate driveways would meet VDOT minimum standards.  

However, the County’s higher access standard is in part to 

address public safety, health and welfare through the goals of 

access management and safer progression of traffic by limited 

entry points, even in rural areas with a lesser volume of 

traffic. The higher standard also helps in retaining the rural 

character of these areas and roadways. 

 

c. The facts upon which the request is based are unique to the 

property and are not applicable generally to other property so 

as not to make reasonably practicable the formulation of 



Subdivision-0022-2018. 9812 Old Stage Road Minor Subdivision 

Staff Report for the August 22, 2018, Development Review Committee Meeting 

 

This staff report is prepared by the James City County Planning Division to provide information to the Planning Commission and Board of 

Supervisors to assist them in making a recommendation on this application. It may be useful to members of the general public interested in this 

application. 

Page 3 of 3 

general regulations to be adopted as an amendment to this 

chapter;  

 

The physical separation of proposed Lot No. 4 is an unusual 

situation that is not typically seen throughout the County.  

However, for proposed Lot Nos. 1-3, staff does not find that 

the facts upon which the request is based are unique to the 

property, as further discussed below.   

 

d. No objection to the exception has been received in writing 

from the Transportation Department, Health Department, or 

Fire Chief; and  

 

Staff has consulted with applicable reviewing agencies, 

specifically with VDOT, the Virginia Department of Health 

and the Fire Department, and there was no objection to the 

exception request.  VDOT staff has indicated that VDOT does 

not have access management standards for driveways on 

secondary roads. 

  

e. The hardship or injustice is created by the unusual character 

of the property, including dimensions and topography, or by 

other extraordinary situation or condition of such property. 

Personal, financial, or self-inflicted hardship or injustice shall 

not be considered proper justification for an exception.  

 

As discussed above, the physical separation of proposed Lot 

No. 4 is an unusual situation that is not typically seen 

throughout the County.  However, for proposed Lot Nos. 1-3, 

staff finds that neither the dimensions/building area of the 

proposed lots nor the topography of the lots are unusual 

compared with other parcels, or of a nature that would 

preclude the placement of a shared driveway. Specifically, 

with regard to topography, while there are steeper slopes at 

the rear and side of the property, the front portion of the 

property adjacent to Fire Tower Road does not appear to have 

steep slopes, and appears to be comparable from a 

topographic standpoint to the locations of past shared 

driveways approved under this section.  The exception criteria 

states that financial hardship shall not be considered a proper 

justification for an exception. As noted above, staff does not 

find a hardship outlined in the applicant’s document that 

meets the hardship standards for proposed Lot Nos. 1-3. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends that the DRC recommend approval of the exception 

request to allow an individual driveway for Lot No. 4 to the Planning 

Commission.  

 

Staff recommends that the DRC recommend denial of the exception 

request to allow individual driveways for Lot Nos. 1-3 to the Planning 

Commission.  

 

 

AB/md 

S22-18OldStageRd 
 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 

2. Subdivision Plat 

3. Applicant Exception Request 



Ho
lly

Fo
rks

Rd

Old Stage Rd

Fire

Tow
er Rd

Wicklow Farms

Stonehouse

Knemeyer-Potter

King's
Village

JCC S-0022-2018
9812 Old Stage Road Subdivision Plat

« 9812 Old Stage Road

Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia. The data contained herein are the
property of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Distribution of any of these
data to anyone not licensed by the Commonwealth is strictly prohibited.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.50.05

Miles



S
:\J

O
B

S
\W

10
53

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\0

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\S

ur
ve

y\
P

la
ns

\P
la

ts
\W

10
53

00
0_

S
ub

di
vis

io
n

Pl
at

.d
w

g,
7/

23
/2

01
8

9:
54

:2
8

AM
,m

ike
.a

pp
er

so
n

JAMES CITY COUNTYSTONEHOUSE  DISTRICT VIRGINIA

GENERAL NOTES

5248 Olde Towne Road, Suite 1
Williamsburg, Virginia 23188
Phone: (757) 253-0040
Fax: (757) 220-8994

www.aesva.com

SREENIGNEGNITLUSNOC
Hampton Roads       |        Central Virginia        |        Middle PeninsulaRevised

ByDescriptionDateRev.

Project Contacts:

Project Number:

Scale:

AS NOTED

Date:

5-02-2018

Sheet Number

1 of 5

SJB

W10530

Lic. No. 002304

VICINITY  MAP
(APPROXIMATE SCALE: 1"=2000')

Copyright ADC The Map People permitted use number 21004223

PRELIMINARY

PRELIMINARY

PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

LOCATED ALONG STATE ROUTE 634 (FIRE TOWER ROAD)

BEING A PART OF THE PROPERTY
OWNED BY NICELAND FARM, LLC

CREATING HEREON LOTS 1 THROUGH 5

REF: JCC CASE NO. S-0022-2018

PROJECT
AREA



S
:\J

O
B

S
\W

10
53

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\0

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\S

ur
ve

y\
P

la
ns

\P
la

ts
\W

10
53

00
0_

S
ub

di
vis

io
n

Pl
at

.d
w

g,
7/

23
/2

01
8

9:
55

:0
2

AM
,m

ike
.a

pp
er

so
n

5248 Olde Towne Road, Suite 1
Williamsburg, Virginia 23188
Phone: (757) 253-0040
Fax: (757) 220-8994

www.aesva.com

SREENIGNEGNITLUSNOC
Hampton Roads       |        Central Virginia        |        Middle PeninsulaRevised

ByDescriptionDateRev.

Project Contacts:

Project Number:

Scale:

1"=100'

Date:

05-02-2018

Sheet Number

2 of 5

SJB

W10530

Lic. No. 002304

STONEHOUSE DISTRICT JAMES CITY COUNTY VIRGINIA

FOR CURVE DATA
SEE SHEET 4

PRELIMINARY PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

LOCATED ALONG STATE ROUTE 634 (FIRE TOWER ROAD)

BEING A PART OF THE PROPERTY
OWNED BY NICELAND FARM, LLC

CREATING HEREON LOTS 1 THROUGH 5

REF: JCC CASE NO. S-0022-2018

SEE SHEET 5 FOR
REMAINDER LOT 5 SEE SHEET 3



S
:\J

O
B

S
\W

10
53

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\0

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\S

ur
ve

y\
P

la
ns

\P
la

ts
\W

10
53

00
0_

S
ub

di
vis

io
n

Pl
at

.d
w

g,
7/

23
/2

01
8

9:
55

:2
7

AM
,m

ike
.a

pp
er

so
n

5248 Olde Towne Road, Suite 1
Williamsburg, Virginia 23188
Phone: (757) 253-0040
Fax: (757) 220-8994

www.aesva.com

SREENIGNEGNITLUSNOC
Hampton Roads       |        Central Virginia        |        Middle PeninsulaRevised

ByDescriptionDateRev.

Project Contacts:

Project Number:

Scale:

1"=100'

Date:

05-02-2018

Sheet Number

3 of 5

SJB

W10530
PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

STONEHOUSE DISTRICT JAMES CITY COUNTY VIRGINIA

Lic. No. 002304

LOCATED ALONG STATE ROUTE 634 (FIRE TOWER ROAD)

BEING A PART OF THE PROPERTY
OWNED BY NICELAND FARM, LLC

PRELIMINARY

CREATING HEREON LOTS 1 THROUGH 5

REF: JCC CASE NO. S-0022-2018

FOR CURVE DATA
SEE SHEET 4

SEE SHEET 4

SEE SHEET 2

SEE SHEET 5 FOR
REMAINDER LOT 5



S
:\J

O
B

S
\W

10
53

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\0

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\S

ur
ve

y\
P

la
ns

\P
la

ts
\W

10
53

00
0_

S
ub

di
vis

io
n

Pl
at

.d
w

g,
7/

23
/2

01
8

9:
55

:5
7

AM
,m

ike
.a

pp
er

so
n

5248 Olde Towne Road, Suite 1
Williamsburg, Virginia 23188
Phone: (757) 253-0040
Fax: (757) 220-8994

www.aesva.com

SREENIGNEGNITLUSNOC
Hampton Roads       |        Central Virginia        |        Middle PeninsulaRevised

ByDescriptionDateRev.

Project Contacts:

Project Number:

Scale:

1"=100'

Date:

05-02-2018

Sheet Number

4 of 5

SJB

W10530
PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

STONEHOUSE DISTRICT JAMES CITY COUNTY VIRGINIA

Lic. No. 002304

LOCATED ALONG STATE ROUTE 634 (FIRE TOWER ROAD)

BEING A PART OF THE PROPERTY
OWNED BY NICELAND FARM, LLC

PRELIMINARY

CREATING HEREON LOTS 1 THROUGH 5

REF: JCC CASE NO. S-0022-2018

SEE SHEET 3

SEE SHEET 5 FOR
REMAINDER LOT 5



S
:\J

O
B

S
\W

10
53

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\0

0-
Fi

re
To

w
er

R
oa

d
4

Lo
tS

ub
di

vi
si

on
\S

ur
ve

y\
P

la
ns

\P
la

ts
\W

10
53

00
0_

S
ub

di
vis

io
n

Pl
at

.d
w

g,
7/

23
/2

01
8

9:
56

:2
5

AM
,m

ike
.a

pp
er

so
n

5248 Olde Towne Road, Suite 1
Williamsburg, Virginia 23188
Phone: (757) 253-0040
Fax: (757) 220-8994

www.aesva.com

SREENIGNEGNITLUSNOC
Hampton Roads       |        Central Virginia        |        Middle PeninsulaRevised

ByDescriptionDateRev.

Project Contacts:

Project Number:

Scale:

1"=300'

Date:

05-02-2018

Sheet Number

5 of 5

SJB

W10530
PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

STONEHOUSE DISTRICT JAMES CITY COUNTY VIRGINIA

Lic. No. 002304

LOCATED ALONG STATE ROUTE 634 (FIRE TOWER ROAD)

BEING A PART OF THE PROPERTY
OWNED BY NICELAND FARM, LLC

PRELIMINARY

CREATING HEREON LOTS 1 THROUGH 5

REF: JCC CASE NO. S-0022-2018

LOT 1 LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 4

SEE SHEETS 2, 3 & 4 FOR
10' VDOT R/W  DEDICATION
METES AND BOUNDS

SEE SHEETS 2 & 3 FOR
LOTS 1, 2, 3 & 4
METES AND BOUNDS



5248 Olde Towne Road, Suite 1
Williamsburg, Virginia 23188

Phone (757) 253-0040
Fax (757) 220-8994

aesva.com

S:\JOBS\W10530.00\Fire Tower Road \Admin\Correspondence\Letters\Joint Driveway Waiver Request

Alex Baruch Revised July 27, 2018
Planner 1
James City County Planning Division
101-A Mounts Bay Road
Williamsburg, VA 23187

Re: S-0022-2018, 9812 Old Stage Rd. Minor Subdivision
       Shared Driveway Requirement

Dear Alex:

I am writing on behalf of Niceland Farm, LLC to request an exception to the shared
driveway requirement in regards to lots 1 through 4 as shown on the PLAT OF SUBDIVISION,
BEING A PART OF THE PROPERTY OWNED BY NICELAND FARM, LLC, prepared by AES
Consulting Engineers, that is currently under JCC review.

As discussed in our meeting on June 8, 2018, the 4 new lots all front on Fire Tower
Road (SR #634) and range in size from 6.077 acres to 13.839 acres.  The remaining property (±
198.68 acres) has frontage on Fire Tower Road as well as Old Stage Road (SR #30) and is
served by an existing driveway off of Old Stage Road.  Fire Tower Road is currently ± 4,600
linear feet in length (to end of state maintenance) and currently serves stables/barns and
approximately 8 dwellings, 3 of which are accessed by private roads (see Zoning Ord. Sec. 19-
18 (b).

In the letter dated 14 May, 2018, VDOT recommended approval of the plat in its current
state.  A Land Use Permit will be required prior to construction of any work within state
maintained right of way limits or easements.  A note stating such will be added to the plat prior
to re-submission.

Due to topography, limited building areas, the sizes of lots 1 through 3, VDOT
recommended approval and minimal traffic on Fire Tower Road, adherence to the requirement
of a shared driveway would be of no benefit and would cause the land owner to incur
unreasonable and unnecessary expense as well as encumbering the lots and affecting
reasonable use of the property by future owners (see Zoning Ord. Sec.19-18 (4)(a), (b), (c), (d)
and (e).  Lot 4 is an isolated lot and bounded by other property owners on both sides.  A single
driveway would be the only option for this lot.

On behalf of Niceland Farm, LLC, I am asking that this request be presented to the
Development Review Committee for their review and approval.  If you have any questions or
need additional information, please let me know.

Respectfully Submitted
AES Consulting Engineers

CC: David Nice Sam J. Bikkers, L.S.
Survey Manager
sam.bikkers@aesva.com

mailto:sam.bikkers@aesva.com

	Meeting Agenda
	June 20, 2018 Meeting Minutes
	C-18-0071. BASF Temporary Overhead Power Line
	C-18-0064. 7083 Menzels Road Minor Subdivision
	S-0022-2018. 9812 Old Stage Rd. Minor Subdivision

